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[bookmark: _Toc211502687][bookmark: _Toc211856675][bookmark: _Toc215520678]Disclaimer
The following answers are based on California Energy Commission (CEC) staff’s interpretation of the questions received. It is the Applicant’s responsibility to review the Solicitation Manual and to determine whether their proposed project is eligible for funding by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements within the solicitation. The CEC cannot give definitive advice as to whether a particular project is eligible for funding, because not all proposal details are known.


[bookmark: _Toc215520679]General/Administrative
[bookmark: _Toc215520680]Workshop Logistics & Contacts
· Q1: Can we get the list of attendees for the workshop?
List of attendees can be requested by contacting the Commission Agreement Officer, Chester Hong via email to chester.hong@energy.ca.gov

· Q2: Can you share the contact for the Commission Agreement Officer?
The Commissioner Agreement Officer is Chester Hong, and he can be contacted via email at chester.hong@energy.ca.gov 

· Q3: Can you clarify that you meant only 1 award will be funded?
(e.g., If the minimum is $1M, what if 3 applications ask for $1M and you have $3M—doesn’t that mean 3 awards?)
While the maximum available funding is $3 million and the minimum request is $1 million (with the required 20% match), only one award will be made under this solicitation. The selected project must comprehensively address all the project focus areas outlined in the solicitation. The final award amount will be based on the funding requested by the highest-scoring application that meets all the requirements.
[bookmark: _Toc215520681]Technical
[bookmark: _Toc215520682]Scope of Work & Use Cases 
· Q4: Which BtM resources are highest priority (EVs, heat pumps, batteries, rooftop PV, controls)?
The highest priority behind-the-meter (BtM) resources for this solicitation are battery energy storage systems (BESSs) and electric vehicles (EVs), as the project focuses on improving forecasts of their location and behavior. PV is also considered, particularly during conditions such as wildfire smoke and cloud coverage. Nevertheless, applicants are encouraged to expand the range of BtM resources to enhance the accuracy of short-term forecasts.

· Q5: Is forecasting only limited to demand side, or does it also include BtM resource availability?
This solicitation targets improvements in forecasting the behavior of BtM resources, including load-modifying resources such as BESS and EVs, as well as generation resources like solar PV. The project aims to enhance predictions of both load impacts and resource availability, such as BESS charge/discharge patterns, EV charging behavior, and PV output under varying environmental conditions like cloud cover and wildfire smoke.



· Q6: Is forecasting peak demand events or annual energy use the highest goal of the project?
The purpose of this solicitation is to fund research that improves the accuracy and operational value of tools used to forecast BtM resources. These improvements should enable grid operators and electricity market participants to more effectively plan their generation reserves, capacity, and real-time operations, supporting a more reliable, efficient, cleaner, and cost-effective energy system for California ratepayers. Applicants should explain how any proposed forecasting improvements (whether aimed at peak demand events or annual energy use) will accomplish the stated goals of this solicitation.

· Q7: Will the outputs be used for resource planning, DERMS operations, distribution planning, or market bidding?
The project awarded under this solicitation will develop new methods and advanced models to improve the performance and robustness of net load forecasting. These improvements will help CAISO and others to plan and operate the grid more effectively. Benefits could also extend to IOUs, LSEs, DER aggregators, and other market participants who rely on accurate, real-time forecasting of DER performance. The full list of expected outcomes for this project are listed on page 2, section I.A. Applicants are encouraged to describe how they will work with key stakeholders to ensure the improvements made in BTM forecasting will be integrated into operations through applications like improved resource planning, DERMS operations, distribution planning, or market bidding, among others. 

· Q8: Is integration required, or just delivery of forecast/analytics outputs?
The goal is not just to deliver forecasting and analytics outputs, but to ensure they are designed for integration into the existing models used by grid operators and other interested parties. For more details on project tasks please refer to Section I. C.   

· Q9: Are you expecting one generalizable model or multiple resource-specific models?
Applicants may propose either a single generalizable model or multiple resource-specific models, depending on their approach. The key is that the models should be designed to be useful to grid operators and other stakeholders in future applications. The choice should align with the project’s goals and demonstrate potential for scalability and practical use.

· Q10: Does this GFO envision hardware development and/or testing?
Hardware development and/or testing is not a focus of this GFO. However, applicants may propose additional studies or components, including those related to hardware, if they strengthen the overall application and contribute to the project’s goals in a meaningful way.

· Q11: Would this funding allow for upgrading existing controls for Skyspark integration?
This GFO does not specifically fund hardware upgrades. However, activities such as updating existing control systems for SkySpark integration may be included as additional work if they clearly support the project’s objectives. For more clarification on the project’s objectives and tasks, refer to Section I.C., which outlines methods to improve BtM net-load forecasting by leveraging data sources such as AMI data, weather data, wildfire smoke plume models, and similar.

· Q12: Can we use our own hardware platform to collect data and show benefits, as it’s being used by other utilities outside California?
Applicants may use their own hardware platform to collect data and demonstrate benefits, including if it’s already in use by utilities outside California. However, any data used in the project must be clearly justified in terms of how it supports the project’s objectives. Specifically, data from outside California must include a justification of its relevance to California’s grid conditions and forecasting needs. Likewise, all other data sources, whether public or private, must be accompanied by an explanation of how they will help achieve the solicitation’s goal of improving short-term net-load forecasting for California grid operators and market participants.

· Q13: Can monitoring and verifying this BtM data with our hardware and cloud-based software be beneficial for this GFO?
Applicants may use their own hardware platform to monitor and verify BtM data, as long its usage supports the project’s goals and enhances forecasting capabilities. Similarly to question 12, any data source proposed in the application must be justified. 

[bookmark: _Toc215520683]Forecasting Methodology & Evaluation
· Q14: What is the intended level of forecasting — feeder, substation, or higher level?
Forecasting should be at least at the substation level for some of CAISO’s purposes, but more granular levels like feeder are encouraged for broader stakeholder benefits. Projects offering greater locational detail and value to more users may justify higher funding. Flexibility is allowed if the approach contributes to improve BtM forecasting accuracy and aligns with the purpose of this solicitation.

· Q15: Focus on long-term resource planning or short-term operational forecasting?
The primary focus of this GFO is on short-term operational forecasting to support real-time and near-term grid needs. However, there is flexibility for applicants to include long-term resource planning components as additional outcomes, provided they complement the main objectives and enhance the overall value of the project.

· Q16: What accuracy metrics will be used to evaluate forecasting performance?
The GFO provides a list of examples of key performance indicators (KPIs) related to forecast accuracy in Section I.C. in the solicitation manual. These include, but are not limited to:
· Reduction in forecast error during high-variability events by a defined percentage
· Increase in the correlation coefficient between forecasted and actual net load
· Percentage reduction in large forecast deviations
Applicants are encouraged to propose additional KPIs that align with their forecasting approach. 

· Q17: Who is responsible for validation (utility, CEC, evaluator, academic partner)?
Validation of data and forecasting methods is the responsibility of the applicant as part of their results analysis. Applicants are encouraged to implement robust validation approaches and may also coordinate with relevant interested parties (such as utilities, academic partners, or other technical experts) to ensure their methods are aligned with and applicable to existing models used by grid operators and other end users.

· Q18: Is it possible for CEC to provide more details on the current forecasting model used by CAISO to help applicants identify areas for improvement?
The California Energy Commission (CEC) and CAISO have collaborated to provide insights into current forecasting methods and research needs. While the CEC does not directly provide detailed documentation on CAISO’s forecasting models, applicants are encouraged to review the “Scoping Workshop: Identifying Research Gaps to Improve Predictability of Behind the Meter Resources — Grid Operator Perspectives” Workshop. This workshop, co-hosted by CAISO and the CEC, offers valuable context on current forecasting practices and highlights areas where improvements are needed.
Applicants can use this information to better align their proposals with identified gaps and stakeholder needs. Coordination with CAISO and other stakeholders is also encouraged to ensure proposed methods are relevant and applicable.

· Q19: During the workshop, we discussed that one of the desired outcomes is supporting adoption of the solutions by the CAISO team. To help us better understand the current landscape and ensure our recommendations well-aligned, would it be possible to obtain more information about the solution the CAISO team is currently using? Alejandra (Solicitation Manager) briefly mentioned that there may be a link to a recent presentation or meeting with CAISO. Any details regarding the technical methodology, forecast model specifications, or challenges identified by CAISO data team would be extremely helpful. This information would allow our team to review the existing approach and begin evaluating potential areas for improvement.
Please refer to the answer in question 18. 

· Q20: Could the CEC provide more information on CAISO’s current net load forecasting models and methodologies, so applicants are more aware of the challenges faced by grid operators now?
Please refer to the answer in question 18.

· Q21: Is it appropriate to assign a TRL (Technology Readiness Level) range for this GFO? If yes, what is it?
Technology Readiness Level (TRL) is not relevant to this GFO.
[bookmark: _Toc215520684]Data Access & Quality
· Q22: Will AMI data be available at the customer level, cohort level, or only aggregated?
AMI data will not be directly provided through this GFO. It is the responsibility of the applicant to acquire the necessary data by coordinating with relevant data sources such as the CEC, other state agencies, IOUs, CAISO, etc. The level of data granularity (whether customer-level, cohort-level, or aggregated) depends on the agreements and access established by the applicant.

· Q23: Will we have access to device telemetry (battery dispatch logs, EV charging session data, inverter data)?
Access to device-level telemetry, such as BESS dispatch logs, EV charging session data, or inverter data, is not directly provided through this GFO. It is the responsibility of the applicant to acquire such data by coordinating with relevant sources. If applicants intend to use privatized or proprietary data, they must justify its relevance and ensure it will be usable and accessible beyond the grant period, in alignment with the project’s goals. 

· Q24: Will customer metadata (rates, building type, climate zone, LMI status) be included with AMI?
Customer metadata, such as rate structures, building type, climate zone, or low-to-moderate income (LMI) status, is not guaranteed to be included with AMI data. Applicants will need to identify and acquire these data elements from additional sources if they are not embedded in the AMI dataset. To meet the objectives of this GFO and improve the accuracy of current forecasting models, applicants are encouraged to seek out complementary data sources that enhance their modeling, methods, and analysis. A clear plan for data integration and coordination should be included in the proposal.

· Q25: Will the CEC facilitate obtaining AMI data from utilities or other entities?
Please refer to the response provided in question 22. Additionally, following the award, we may be able to support the grantee to facilitate coordination with utilities or other entities to help obtain relevant AMI datasets. 

· Q26: The GFO describes AMI data as “a foundational input.” What is the status of quality control for the raw AMI data? Have CEC inspections confirmed its usability?
As part of the project focus, applicants are encouraged to propose data cleaning and quality control methods to address any issues with raw AMI data and enhance its usability for modeling and forecasting purposes. 

· Q27: Are there restrictions on sharing or working directly with customer-level data?
Applicants must ensure that all data handling complies with applicable privacy standards and safeguards sensitive information appropriately.

· Q28: The CPUC Data Working Group has yet to publish their report, and it is indicated by the group that their data won’t be available at this point and cannot be shared with applicants right now. If the primary data will only be AMI data from one of the IOUs, will the CEC consider it as sufficient data sources for this project?
The CEC does not prescribe specific data sources for this project. It is the applicant’s responsibility to identify, justify, and secure access to data that supports the project’s objectives. While AMI data can be a foundational input, applicants must explain how it will be used to improve short-term net-load forecasting. If other datasets, such as those from IOUs, state agencies, and the CPUC Data Working Group, are not yet available, applicants should plan accordingly and demonstrate how their selected data sources are sufficient to meet the goals of the solicitation.

· Q29: Does CAISO commit to provide appropriate demand data at the distribution level to train or verify models?
CAISO does not commit to providing distribution-level demand data. However, grant applicants are encouraged to include a plan for coordinating with CAISO and other relevant stakeholders to facilitate data sharing and model integration.
[bookmark: _Toc215520685]

Eligibility
[bookmark: _Toc215520686]Application Qualifications
· Q28: Should the company be incorporated in California at the time of submitting the proposal?
No, the company does not need to be incorporated in California at the time of submitting the proposal. However, it must be registered and in good standing with the California Secretary of State prior to being recommended for approval at a CEC Business Meeting. Applicants are encouraged to begin the registration process early to avoid delays if selected for funding. For more information refer to Section II.A.3 of the GFO manual.

· Q29: Does the applicant have to have an association with an existing utility, or can it be a private entrant (e.g., a weather forecasting vendor)?
The applicant does not need to have an existing association with a utility and or a private entrant, such as a weather forecasting vendor. However, the applicant must describe how they plan to identify their data sources whether from a utility, a private provider, or public datasets. This plan should describe how they will obtain and manage the necessary data throughout the project and may include proposed or future associations with utilities or other relevant entities to ensure data access and project feasibility.

[bookmark: _Toc215520687]Project Location & Scope
· Q30: Can these specific CEC EPIC Grant monies be applied to projects in LADWP (not an IOU)?
This solicitation does not involve any demonstration projects. The project awarded under this solicitation will develop improved methods of forecasting BtM resources and work with key stakeholders like CAISO to integrate those improved methods into grid operations, with a focus on providing measurable benefits to IOU ratepayers. Other market participants, including LADWP, could potentially benefit from improvements in forecasting methods as well, but that should not be the project focus.

· Q31: Can we purchase data from out-of-state entities?
The models and data used must be applicable to grid operations in California. However, applicants may propose the use of additional out-of-state data sources as part of an optional supplemental study, if they can demonstrate how such data could enhance forecasting tools or provide added value. The primary focus of the project must remain on California-specific applications and use cases.



· Q32: Our core business model focuses on VNEM systems with BESS for multi-family communities. In a NEM3 world, we forecast local load for location-based generation. Is this applicable to the GFO?
The project awarded under this solicitation will develop improved methods of forecasting BtM resources and work with key stakeholders like CAISO to integrate those improved methods into grid operations, with a focus on providing measurable benefits to IOU ratepayers. Other market participants, such as your business, could potentially benefit from improvements in forecasting methods as well, but that should not be the project focus.

· Q33: Can we still qualify for the grant if our solution is transferable from a NEM3 VNEM + Battery for Multi-Family to BTM for Single Family?
Please refer to the answer in question 32.

· Q34: The presentation used a figure showing a residential customer. Is the target residential sector only, or all sectors?
The figure shown during the pre-application workshop was simply a representation of BtM resources, such as those commonly found in the residential sector. However, the grant is not limited to the residential sector. All sectors, including commercial, industrial, and agricultural, are considered eligible. 

· Q35: We have developed load forecasting models and use it for making important energy decisions for all stakeholders. We are California company but are working with Washington State Utility company as our pilot customer. Could we use a letter of support from them for this funding opportunity? We also have relationships with LADWP, and we will try to get a letter of support from them also. How important is to get letters from PG&E and SCE? At this we have not established relationship with them. Could you help us to reach out to them as well?
Letters of support from a range of stakeholders are acceptable for this solicitation. Letters from California-based entities, particularly those involved in grid operations or forecasting, are generally considered more directly relevant to the project’s objectives. Out-of-state letters may also be included and can demonstrate broader experience or partnerships. While letters from investor-owned utilities such as PG&E and SCE are not required, applicants may describe plans for future collaboration with these or other California entities. The CEC may assist with stakeholder engagement through the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) process during the project.
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